PROVI SI ONAL

E/ 1997/ SR 7
4 July 1997

Oiginal: ENGISH

ECONOM C AND SOOI AL COUNC L
Subst anti ve session of 1997
PROVI SI ONAL SUMVARY RECCRD OF THE 7th MEETI NG

Hel d at the Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva,
on Monday, 30 June 1997, at 3 p.m

President : M. CGALUSKA (Czech Republic)

CONTENTS

CPERATI ONAL ACTIMI TIES O THE UNI TED NATI ONS FOR | NTERNATI ONAL DEVELOPMENT
COCPERATI ON

(a) COORDI NATI ON OF ACTIM TIES ON A SYSTEMWDE BASIS:  FUNDI NG FOR
CPERATI ONAL ACTIVI TI ES FOR DEVELOPMENT: | MPLEMENTATI ON OF GENERAL
ASSEMBLY RESCLUTI ON 50/ 227 ( continued)

Corrections to this record should be submtted in one of the working
| anguages. They should be set forth in a nenorandum and al so i ncorporated in
a copy of the record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this

docunment to the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des
Nat i ons, Ceneva.

GE. 97-62296 (E)



E/ 1997/ SR 7
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3 p.m

CPERATI ONAL ACTIMI TIES O THE UNI TED NATI ONS FOR | NTERNATI ONAL DEVELOPMENT
COCPERATI ON

(a) COORDI NATI ON OF ACTIVITIES ON A SYSTEMWDE BASIS:  FUNDI NG FOR
CPERATI ONAL ACTI VI TI ES FOR DEVELOPMENT: | MPLEMENTATI ON OF
GENERAL ASSEMBLY RESOLUTI ON 50/ 227 (agenda item 3 (a)) ( conti nued)
(A 52/ 155- E/ 1997/ 68, E/ 1997/ 78)

The PRESIDENT invited the Council to continue its infornal

di al ogue with the heads of United Nations funds and progranmes.

M. MEYER (Luxemnbourg), speaking on behalf of the European Union,
asked what measures were contenplated to widen the basis of the recruitnment of
di ssi dent coordinators and to guarantee their independence, particularly in
relation to their organizations of origin. He also requested further
i nformati on about the content of the United Nations Devel opnent Assi stance
Framewor k (UNDAF) and its conplenentarity with existing docunments, such as
Country Strategy Notes (CSN) and the existing country notes of the Wrld Bank.
It would also be interesting to know the views of the panel on the prospects
of inproving contacts with the specialized agenci es.

Ceneral Assenbly resol ution 50/227 requested the executive boards to
make their own arrangenents for financing programres, and he would like to
know the thinking of the secretariats on those natters. He wondered whet her
the possibility of followi ng the exanple of the United Nations Children's Fund
(UNNCEF) in nobilizing financial support fromthe private sector was being
consi dered by ot her agenci es.

Ms. LETROT (France) said that she noted from paragraph 33 of the
report on field coordination (E 1997/ 65/ Add. 2) that several resident
representatives of the United Nations systemhad indicated that they were not
sufficiently notivated to devote the necessary tine to supporting resident
coordi nator systemfunctions, and would |ike to know what was bei ng done to
remedy that situation. She agreed with the representative of Luxenbourg that
it was highly desirable to separate the functions of resident coordinators in
the field fromtheir functions as |ocal heads of funds or programmes. During
di scussions on the internal reformof the United Nations Devel oprment Programme
(UNDP), it had emerged that the objectives assigned to UNDP personnel,
particularly with regard to resource mnobilization, did not necessarily

correspond to the needs of the systemas a whol e.



E/ 1997/ SR 7
page 3

She wi shed to ask the Executive Director of the United Nations
Popul ati on Fund (UNFPA) what had been the advant ages and di sadvant ages of the
change of status of programme directors to representatives. On the question
of shared prem ses, she would |ike to know whet her the specialized agencies
had been associated with the rationalization exercise, and whether there were
many identified cases of extra costs arising when, for exanple, prem ses
previously free of charge were placed at the di sposal of several agencies.
She wonder ed whether the problens arising fromthe diversion of UNDP housi ng
stock were retarding joint work on that natter.

She wi shed to ask the Under-Secretary-Ceneral in Charge of the Econom c
and Soci al Departnents how he proposed to organi ze rel ati ons between his new
departnent and the agencies responsible for field inplenentation.

M. MABILANGAN (Philippines) said that admnistrative refornms to

the United Nations systemnust not be nade at the expense of inplenenting
devel opnent pl ans, and he wondered what provision there was for striking a
bal ance between demand and supply in cases where a CSN enbodi ed priorities
differing fromthose of the DAF and whether a third document m ght possibly be
required. He also asked in which docunment priority sectoral concerns would be
identified. Like the representative of France, he wondered what progress had
been nmade towards involving the specialized agencies at the country |evel,
where further clarification of their mandates m ght possibly be required.
Wil e wel com ng the strengthening of the role of the resident coordinators, he
woul d be grateful for further information about coordinating nechani sms
between them and the regional programres.
Ms. BELLAMY (Executive Director, United Nations Children's Fund

(UNNCEF)) said that the role of the resident coordinators had been extensively
di scussed in the devel opment operations group and it seened to be the general
view that there was need for sone inprovenent, in such points as selection
responsi veness to the needs of the systemas a whole, and problens arising out
of the dual function of the coordinators. The whole question was one on which
di scussion was likely to continue for sone time.

As far as the DAF was concerned, one of the great advantages was that,
where a common country assessment could be arrived at, a common dat abase coul d
be built which different agencies could use in shaping their programes,

wi thout conprom sing the identity and accountability of individual programres.



E/ 1997/ SR 7
page 4

As for cooperation with the specialized agencies, the funds and
programres were generally working nore closely with themat the country |evel.
If a common country assessnent coul d be achi eved, she hoped that the
speci al i zed agenci es woul d choose to partici pate.

Ms. BERTIN  (Executive Director, Wrld Food Programme (WP)) said
that the perfornance of resident coordinators, also acting as UNDP resident
representatives, had previously been assessed exclusively in terns of the
latter function. In future they woul d have objectives set as coordinators for
the United Nations and have their perfornance appraised partly in terns of
that function. The recruitment of resident coordinators woul d be best
considered at the end of the working year when UNDP carried out its customary
review of the posts required. The post of resident coordinator should be seen
as a career opportunity for staff froma variety of agenci es.

As for the exanple set by UNCEF in nobilizing funds fromcivil society,
WFP had for the | ast couple of years been trying to gain new partners to hel p
to pronmote anti-hunger issues. It was also talking to sone business
corporations about food or cash contributions and had nade contact with
educational circles in some countries, in the hope of encouragi ng nore
enlightened attitudes towards its work.

WFP shared prem ses in about half the countries in which it worked, and,
where that was not so, it was for particular reasons, such as the availability
of rent-free acconmodati on

Ms. SADIK (Executive Director, United Nations Popul ati on Fund
(UNFPA)) said that UNFPA had several mechani sns for cooperation with the
speci al i zed agenci es, such as the guidelines issued for cooperation with WHQ
and UNI CEF, on reproductive health, and it al so had agency support teamns for
cooperation with WHO, UNESCO, FAO and the regi onal econom c conmi sSi ons.

There was al so an inter-agency task force, and common gui delines had al so been
established in the followup to the International Conference on Popul ation and
Devel opnent (1 CPD).

Several new financing methods had been explored, for exanple by
approving larger country progranmes than UNFPA coul d itself nmanage, so that
donors coul d buy into such programres. The possibilities of private-sector

fundi ng were al so being explored, as were contacts w th new government donors.



E/ 1997/ SR 7
page 5

UNFPA had carried out a survey on views on popul ati on, reproductive
heal th and other relevant issues in various countries, which had publicized
the findings. Field trips for parlianentarians to see what was bei ng done by
UNFPA had al so been organi zed. The possibility of debt swappi ng was al so
bei ng expl ored with a nunber of donors.

Wth regard to the resident coordinators, she said that their functions
shoul d be clearly defined and separated fromthose involved in representing
any single organi zation. They should al so set common goals to be pursued on
behal f of the whole system which was particularly inportant where
fund-rai sing was concerned. UNFPA al so derived nany advantages on the use of
its field officers, who had nore tine to pronote particul ar sectoral
activities than the coordinators.

Inreply to the question by the representative of the Philippines, she
said that she herself would like to see a nore unified approach than was
sonetimes possi ble by using CSNs. The coordi nati on of thematic working groups
shoul d emerge fromcountry progranmes, rather than the reverse. The
coordi nation of regional progranmes on a systemw de basis presented probl ens
that were still very nmuch live issues for the DAF. A common set of principles
was required, and they coul d be derived from gui delines worked out by
fol | ow up groups.

M. SPETH (Admnistrator, United Nations Devel opment Programre
(UNDP)) said that he shared the viewthat the inpartiality of the resident
coordi nators was of fundanmental inportance, and the UNDP Executive Conmttee
had taken a nunber of decisions to ensure: that, at all times, they acted on
behal f of and in the interests of the systemas a whole; that they understood
that, in all cases, the primary interests to be consulted were those of the
system and not of UNDP or any other agency; and that adequate tine was
allotted to themto carry out their coordination duties.

A recent questionnaire had shown that, across all the regions, they
spent, on average, about one third of their time on their resident coordinator
functions but believed that they could usefully spend as nmuch as half of their
time on them Arrangenents were to be nade to ensure that they were able to
do so. As far as UNDP was concerned, if the figure began to exceed
50 per cent, a country director could be put in to assune the day-to-day

managenent of the Programme.



E/ 1997/ SR 7
page 6

As for performance appraisals, the resident coordinators would continue
to report to the Secretary-Ceneral, but independent performance appraisals
agai nst standards agreed anong all the agencies would be carried out. As |ong
as resident coordinators continued to have two sets of responsibilities, sone
give and take had to be allowed for, but the alternative - a full-time
resident coordinator - would weaken the systemrather than strengthen it.
Such a person woul d have no programre and no standing, and tinme would al so be
wast ed because coordi nation responsibilities were not full-tinme activities.

UNDP was al so establishing a sense of collective responsibility for the
resi dent coordi nator systemthrough the Ofice of United Nations System
Support Services (ONS), into which secondnents of staff had been nmade from
UNFPA, WFP and UN CEF.

As for the specialized agencies, they had not yet been involved in any
of the formal processes to which he had referred, although it mght at sone
future time be possible to invite their participation.

On the point raised by the representative of France, he thought that
there mght be sone m sunderstanding. The main thrust of paragraphs 30-33 of
docunent E/ 1997/ 65/ Add.2 was that there was a need to create incentives for
all funds and progranmes to support the resident coordinator system He
agreed with the representative of Philippines that any reform made shoul d
enhance not reduce devel opnent effectiveness.

The proposal contained in the DAF was that the advisory notes from
various funds and progranmmes shoul d be consolidated, while ensuring that,
wherever there was a CSN in place, the advisory note should be in response to
it. There would never be a situation under the proposals for the DAF in which
the identification of each progranmre was | ost.

As far as regional cooperation was concerned, he believed that the
regi onal economni ¢ conm ssions woul d be the nost suitable focal points for
coordi nati on.

M. DESAI (Under-Secretary-Ceneral in Charge of the Econom c and
Soci al Departnents), replying to the representative of France, said that
di al ogue between the Council and the various executive boards was being
actively pronoted to ensure better coordi nation between the O ganization' s
nornati ve and operational activities. To that end, heads of task forces had
participated in the coordinated followup to najor international conferences

such as the Wrld Summt for Social Developrent. Simlarly, conference



E/ 1997/ SR 7
page 7

secretariats had been fully involved in the operational side of funds and
programres within the franmework of the Consultative Commttee on Programme and
Operational Questions (CCPOQ of the Administrative Conmttee on Coordination
(ACO).

Al though the outreach capacities of the various secretariats were nodest
in conparison with the scale of funds and programres, their policy advisory
services woul d prove useful in the first stage of the followup to normative
activities, as at the sessions of the United Nations Conference on Trade and
Devel opment (UNCTAD). Biannual neetings at working | evel between the rel evant
secretariats had been proposed, with a viewto pronoting a better
under st andi ng of each side’ s role.

M. CALOVSKI (Coserver for the Former Yugoslav Republic of
Macedoni a) said that the Secretary-Ceneral’s reports (E 1997/65 and Add. 1-4)

provided a clear definition of the O ganization' s operational problens, nanely
a decrease in resources, falling nunbers of donor countries and an

i nsufficient relevance of operational activities to a nunber of Menber States
i ncl udi ng devel opi ng countries, |east devel oped countries (LDCs), snall island
States and countries with economes in transition. Despite a wel cone
reduction in duplication of activities and an increase in resources fromthe
private sector, the overall situation remnai ned unsatisfactory.

The Council, in accordance with its obligations under the Charter,
shoul d make recommendations to the General Assenbly concerning the future
policy of United Nations programmes, and the neasures to be adopted by Menber
States and the other parties concerned. The Secretary-CGeneral was to be
commended for stressing country-level capacity-building in his reports.

The weakening rol e of Covernments in international relations could have
been foreseen in view of the globalization of the world econony and changi ng
mar ket forces. National CGovernnents tended to be nore preoccupied with
internal affairs, whereas civil society and the private sector were
participating nore actively in international relations. Paradoxically, the
i nprovenent in the gl obal econony had not brought about any increased fundi ng
for the United Nations.

The Council nust adopt an “all-enbracing” policy, since political wll,

hunani tari an preoccupations and the urgency of elimnating poverty and hal ti ng



E/ 1997/ SR 7
page 8

the spread of nass diseases were all of equal inportance. Wth a viewto
ensuring that the Bal kans nmet General Assenbly requirenents and becane a

stabl e zone of devel opent by 2000, the priority there was to accel erate

integration into the European Union.

In the politically problematic humanitarian assistance field, the
focus shoul d be on preventive action and post-conflict energency relief.

In the social field, elimnation of poverty through devel opnent nust be
stressed; in the economc field, sustainable growh and devel opnent, ful
integration into the world econony, increased market access and country-|eve
capacity-building. No nation should be narginalized or forgotten

The United Nations agencies were faced with the onerous task of ensuring
that they renmined relevant to the econom c and soci al devel opnent of specific
countries and that the assistance provided was effective. The Council should
not, however, be too pessimstic with regard to funding, since contributions
fromthe private sector were likely to increase and new donors woul d energe
fromanong the devel opi ng countri es.

The adoption of the Agenda on Devel opnent and the outcome of the Specia
Session of the General Assenbly on Agenda 21 were both to be wel coned. The
success of the United Nations agencies would, in future, be judged on their
achi evenents at country level, and not at their headquarters. He would Ilike
to know what concrete nmeasures were being inplenmented to increase resources
for operational activities and what arrangements had been nmade with regi ona
or gani zati ons, such as the European Union or the O ganization for Security and
Cooperation in Europe (CSCE)

Ms. HAGA (oserver for Norway), having wel comed the focus on
reformin the introductory speeches and expressed support for the substantive
proposal s nade, said that the strengthening of the resident coordinator system
and the common prem ses strategy all constituted steps in the right direction,
and UNDP was to be comrended on the | eadership role it had assuned in that
regard. Wile approving the general direction of Track One of the reform
process and | ooking forward to its full inplenentation, she stressed that the
gol den opportunity for broader reformnmust not be mssed. The

Secretary-General shoul d be encouraged to nmake his proposals for reform which



E/ 1997/ SR 7
page 9

were to be submtted to the Council at its current session, both courageous
and conprehensive. The onus would then be on the Menber States to support,
nodify or reject them

A nore integrated systemat the country level was a prerequisite for
attracting investnent in and support for the United Nations devel opnent
system as was the O ganization's willingness to work in a systemw de
context. Piecenmeal reformwould no | onger suffice; hunman and financi al
resources nust be pooled to create a stronger systemto serve as a nore
interesting partner for the devel oping countries and the Bretton Wods
institutions. Turf battles between individual agencies nust be proscribed
since they could prove damaging to the entire United Nations systemand to the
reform process as a whol e.

M. DAMN (Cbserver for Swaziland) said he wondered whet her any

conprehensi ve strategies actually existed for addressing situations at a
regional or national |evel before they escalated. He cited, in particular,
the human suffering in the Geat Lakes region of Africa. What concrete
nmeasures were being inplemented by UNCEF to alleviate the situation in the
Denocratic Republic of the Congo? How was WFP intending to address the food
probl ens of southern Africa? D sputing assertions in the docunentation that
food production had i nproved in the subregion and that there had been a
“bunper crop” in a certain part of Africa (E/1997/41, para. 6), he stressed
that his country in particular had suffered fromthe consequences of drought.
He wondered, therefore, what justification there was for relocating the WP
office away fromthe country.

Commendi ng the efforts of the International Programme for the
Devel opment of Communi cations (I PDC), he said that even greater efforts mnust
be made at grass-roots level to ensure that popul ati on devel opnent issues were
handled in a culturally sensitive manner. To ensure continued rel evance, full
account shoul d be taken of the dial ogue that had taken place at the previous
Council's session, especially with regard to a new devel opnent agenda for
Africa. That would be preferable to enbarki ng upon new t henes.

Bei ng concerned that Africa should not be marginalized, he said it was

tinme that nore Africans sat at the “high table”. The senior |levels of the



E/ 1997/ SR 7
page 10

Secretariat did not currently reflect equitabl e geographical distribution.
Africans, too, should be given the chance to influence the internationa
community, for they were equally conpetent to do so

M. SOVWIA (Chile) said it was inportant to identify bottl enecks
in the area of coordination. The statement by the representative of Norway
refl ected a general feeling on the part of Governments that programmes with
common obj ectives established at major world conferences shoul d coordi nate
their activities as much as possible.

| nproved coordination of the resident coordinator systemwould require
efforts by the various agencies, but also by Governnents, which were
accustoned to dealing with themon an individual basis.

The United Nations suffered froman i nage problem Derogatory
references to the Organization had beconme a general practice; some countries
went so far as to use quite unacceptabl e | anguage, while others had sinply
fallen into the habit of referring to the United Nations as an inefficient
bureaucracy. It had al so been said that the Security Council, of which Chile
was currently a menber, |acked the political will to resolve problens in
countries such as Rmanda and Sonalia. There seened, in fact, to be an
i nternational obsession with the work of the Security Council, often to the
detrinent of other conponents of the United Nations system Sone agenci es,
such as the United Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF) and the Ofice of the
United Nations H gh Conm ssioner for Refugees (UNHCR) were very much in the
public eye. He wondered how the Menber States could collectively assist other
United Nations agencies to project a nmore accurate inmage of the O ganization's
wor k.

At its current session, the Council would, for the first tine, discuss
the question of coordinated followup to the nmajor international conferences
and sutmits. United Nations agencies and the Governnents of the Menber States
must work together to ensure inplenentati on of the comm tnents nade on those
occasi ons.

Conflict prevention was too often negl ected, and probl ens were ignored
until they resulted in emergencies. In other cases, after a politica
agreenent had been signed between the parties to a conflict, the
Security Council nerely issued a final resolution calling on the internationa

community to cooperate in the reconstruction and devel opment of the country in



E/ 1997/ SR 7
page 11

question, which then disappeared fromthe public eye. The Council had a role
to play in such situations, as authorized under Article 65 of the Charter of
the United Nations.

M. RUNGE (CGermany) asked whether the UNDAF was to be considered
as a new procedure or a strengthening of existing coordination procedures,
such as the CSN, which had already been established by vari ous executive
boar ds.

M. AKRAM (Cbserver for Pakistan), speaking with regard to the
reformof the econom c and social segments of the United Nations system said
he wondered whet her the coordi nati on between the vari ous agenci es which the
i dea of a single executive board was designed to enhance was feasi bl e wi thout
direct supervision fromthe Secretary-CGeneral. |In the past, that function had
been entrusted to the Ofice of the Director General for Devel opnent and
Internati onal Econom c Cooperation thus preventing any single operationa
agency from playing a supervisory role. Consideration should, perhaps, be
given to re-establishing that Ofice in the interests of inter-agency
cooper at i on.

Wien the governing councils of the various bodies had been repl aced by
executive boards, it had been understood that the change would lead to
i ncreased donor support, but that had not been the case. The
currently-proposed reforns were al so acconpani ed by prom ses of increased
fundi ng, which were equally unlikely to be fulfilled. It was tinme to seek
reform where necessary, in the interests of greater efficiency rather than
that of increased donor support.

M. SPETH (Admnistrator, United Nations Devel opment Programre
(UNDP)), speaking in reply to the observer for The forner Yugoslav Republic of
Macedoni a, said that he had not suggested that the regi onal economc
conmi ssions shoul d take over, or even be the principal executors of, regional
programres, but rather that a regional admnistrative commttee on
coor di nati on shoul d be established to inprove coordination at the regiona
rather than the country | evel

Inreply to the question by the representative of France, he said that
m sal | ocation of the Reserve for Field Accoombdati on had not been a factor in

sl owi ng down t he nove towards common preni ses



E/ 1997/ SR 7
page 12

He agreed that the Council had an inportant role to play in dealing with
countries in special devel opnent circunstances before, during and after
crises; however, such a role would require the establishnment of new structures
within the Council and, in particular, of snaller commttees which could neet
nore regularly to discuss critical issues.

Inreply to the representative of Chile' s question concerning
bottl enecks in coordination, he pointed out that the United Nations had nany
successes of which to be proud and that existing problens were being, or would
soon be, addressed. Resident coordinators' responsibilities sonetimes
exceeded their | everage at the country level, and their influence was
sonetimes overly dependent on personal relationships at the local level. Sone
of themdid not spend enough tine in nmeeting their responsibilities or |acked
the necessary skills or hunanitarian experience, while others had failed to
recogni ze the need for a team approach under their | eadershinp.

There had been conflicting signals fromHeadquarters and from ot her
Uni ted Nations agencies concerning the responsibilities of the resident
coordi nators, and conflicts mght have arisen between their two roles of
resident coordinator and UNDP resident representative. There was no clear job
description for the post. There was a need for further recruitnent of
resi dent coordi nators from other agencies, for a perfornance nmeasurenent
system and for additional financial and human support for the resident
coor di nat or pr ogr amre.

There had been only sl ow progress in the harnoni zati on of procedures,
formats and financi al managenent systens. Covernnents did not al ways support
the systemor nade conflicting demands on it. Training opportunities existed,
but had not been nmade available to all resident coordinators. However, all of
t hose probl ens were bei ng addressed.

The best way for the United Nations to inprove its inmage was to devel op
strong cooperative programmes at the country |level and to communi cate the
success of those programmes to the public. He enphasized the inportance of
integrated diversity at both the country and Headquarters | evels and the
i mportance of the agencies' ability to act either in cooperation or

i ndependently, as required. It should be renenbered that the sumtotal of al



E/ 1997/ SR 7
page 13

Uni ted Nations devel opnent assi stance was | ess than that provided by bilatera
donors, and preference should be given to country-driven strategies and, in
particular, to those contained in the CSNs.

Wth regard to the question by the representative of Germany, he said
that UNDAF was not a new procedure but a way of bringing existing mechani sns
together. It had not yet been possible to move frominformation sharing to
country-driven strategies, and the purpose of UNDAF was to provide a framework
for discussion of ways of neeting the needs of individual countries. To that
end, he hoped that nore CSNs woul d be produced.

Wth regard to the question by the observer for Pakistan concerning the
former Ofice of the Director-Ceneral for Devel opment and Internationa
Econom ¢ Coordi nati on, he hoped that all Menber States woul d support the
Secretary-CGeneral 's approach to reform He agreed that there had been an
unfortunate pattern of increasing reforns | eading to decreased, rather than
i ncreased, donor support which, if it continued, would put an end to the
O ganization's credibility and to the reform process as a whol e.

Ms. SADIK (Executive Director, United Nations Popul ati on Fund
(UNFPA) ), replying to the question by the observer for The former Yugosl av
Republ i c of Macedonia, said that UNFPA had received a $35 mllion four-year
grant fromthe European Union for a programme in Asia and was working on a
simlar programme for North Africa. There were plans for a neeting in Europe
concerning countries with economes in transition

Wth regard to the comment by the observer for Norway, she said she
agreed with the observer for Pakistan that the reformof the governing
councils had not always led to increased resources; although, her own agency
had, indeed, received increased funding. She also agreed that there nust be a
systemw de approach to reform however, Governnments nust commit thenselves to
supporting those reforns, which were too often thwarted because the agencies
schedul ed for reorgani zation included sonme nationals of certain countries.
Furthermore, the reformprocess had given insufficient consideration to
programres with a denonstrated track record, which should be protected from

i nposed change.



E/ 1997/ SR 7
page 14

Wth regard to the statenent by the observer for Swaziland, she said
t hat UNFPA endeavoured to take national and cultural concerns into
consi deration and had set up a new progranme on culture, norns and nmores, wth
particul ar enphasis on Afri ca.

Inreply to the representative of Chile' s question on bottlenecks in
coordi nation, she said it was true that the dual responsibilities of the
resi dent coordinator systemhad led to various conflicts and that Governnents
preferred to work with individual agencies. Sone CGovernnents had weak
coor di nati on mechani sns, which in turn weakened the United Nations system
whi |l e other Governments were strong and saw a strong United Nations
coordi nation systemas a threat.

The rol e of resident coordinator nust be separated fromthe
representation of any one organi zation at the institutional |evel. Resident
coordinators were justified in fearing that a lack of funding would | ead to
their marginalization, and Menber States nust allow the resident coordinators
to be the final arbitrators before any progranme was negotiated with a
Covernnent. In that regard, it was inportant that a conmon database and
statistics should be used as a basis for all such progranmes.

Inreply to the observer for Pakistan, she said that the role of the
former Office of the Director-Ceneral for Devel opment and Internationa
Econom ¢ Coordi nati on shoul d be re-exam ned to see why it had not worked wel |
The original idea had been to separate the functions involved and to give the
supervisory role to an objective, inpartial individual. However, there was a
need for a better and nore objective selection process, an accurate job
description and performance eval uati ons.

It was unfortunate that the image of the United Nations was dom nated by
political considerations and that the public as a whol e did not understand the
pur pose of assistance programres and the activities of the various agenci es.
Fol lowup to world conferences was a good way of achi eving a common agenda

Inreply to the representative of Germany's question, she said that the
advant age of the UNDAF, which was a refined rather than a new procedure, was
its potential for providing a common system for situational analysis based on
the guidelines established at major conferences and | eading to a comon

devel opnent franmewor k



E/ 1997/ SR 7
page 15

Ms. BERTIN  (Executive Director, Wrld Food Programre (WP)) said
that WFP had phased out its activities in certain countries in order to direct
its decreased resources towards the areas of greatest need. The Executive
Board had defined general criteria but had left it up to the Secretariat to
deci de on specific action. By the end of 1997, WP woul d have phased out its
programres in 20 countries, nost of which were no | onger |east devel oped or
food deficit countries and therefore no longer qualified for nultilateral food
aid.

The Executive Board had mandated that over 50 per cent of the agency's
resources nust be allocated to | east devel oped countries (LDCs) and over
90 per cent to |l owincome food deficit countries. Sone WP activities had
been phased out because Governnents had not cooperated with existing
programres or because those programres were so snall that their overhead costs
were as great as the cost of food delivery. She assured the observer for
Swazi | and, however, that WP was still capabl e of handling energencies, even
in countries where it did not have devel opnent programes

Wth regard to the questions concerning WP donors, she expl ained that,
while WFP relied heavily on a small nunber of major donors, there were al so
many snal |l donors, including four devel oping countries which contributed over
US$ 1 nillion a year and about a dozen countries or entities which had
recently either becone new donors or vastly increased their contributions. In
reply to the question by the observer for Pakistan, she said she was convi nced
that the best way of encouraging donors to increase their contributions was to
i nprove the cost-effectiveness of programres, not only through reformof the
O gani zation but al so through good managenent practice.

Furthernmore, WP nust be proactive in comunicating the needs of the
poor in order to encourage support for its programres. As the representative
of Chile had pointed out, the nedia tended to cover only emnergencies rather
than long-term projects which enabled the poor to help thensel ves. Enmergency
funding received nore attention than devel opment funding, and public awareness
of the latter nust be increased.

Track One of the reform process was proceedi ng apace, but rmuch remai ned
to be done. She | ooked forward to having future proposals by the
Secretary-CGeneral and to Council decisions on further reformof the
United Nati ons.



E/ 1997/ SR 7
page 16

It had been suggested that the Secretary-Ceneral shoul d have greater
responsibilities for United Nati ons agencies. In fact, she thought there was
a need for overall accountability and the Secretary-Ceneral shoul d, perhaps,
be in charge of all United Nations agencies; the general public did not
realize that that was not the case.

Probl ens arose at the | evel of communication between agencies and
Covernnent representatives, and even between the mnistries and
representatives of a single CGovernnent which mght be involved in the work of
vari ous agencies. Another restriction on coordination was the fact that
resource allocation was increasingly dictated by outside sources. However,
experience had resulted in the recognition of problens; there were nany
countries where the resident coordinator programres had functioned well, and
she expected further inprovenent in the long term

Ms. BELLAMY (Executive Director, United Nations Children Fund
(UNICEF)), speaking with regard to bottlenecks in coordination, said there was
a need to make agencies |less personality-driven. Mnber States had pressed
for increased coordination, but there were cases in which Governnents had been
abl e to nmake positive use of the different elements of the United Nations
system Another problemwas the |ack of coordinati on among donor Governnents.

It was true that the nmedia found United Nations devel opment work |ess
interesting than the Organi zation's problens and failures. darity in
descri bing the goals and achi evenents of the United Nations would help to
inmprove its image. UN CEF was working increasingly with civil society, as
well as with Governments and ot her United Nati ons agenci es.

Inreply to the conments by the observer for Swaziland, she pointed out
that in the Denocratic Republic of the Congo, UNI CEF, UNHCR, WP and
non- gover nent al organi zati ons (NG3s) had provided basic health and educati on
assistance with a focus on famly reunification and unacconpani ed children.

She drew attention to the 1996 UN CEF State of the Wrld's Children
Report , which had focused on children and war, and to Ms. Gacia Machel's nore

recent report to the General Assenbly on the inpact of arned conflict on
children (A/51/306 and Add.1). It was inportant to focus not only on the
country level, but also on that of the global comrunity, in order to reduce

the occurrence of such conflicts.



E/ 1997/ SR 7
page 17

Inreply to the representati ve of Germany, she said that the UNDAF was

an attenpt to build on past experience and to gain an overall picture of
exi sting resources and rel ati onshi ps between programmes. She was encour aged
by the introduction of the UNDAF and by the changes in the resident
coordi nator programme under Track One of the reformprocess; the ultimate goa
must, however, be inproved assistance to countries rather than reformfor the
sake of reform and results rather than appearances nmust be the measure of
success. Donors wanted their resources to be efficiently used and, in a
climate of decreased governnent funding, UNICEF was currently receiving
one third of its resources fromthe private sector. That was because it had
been able to denonstrate its success in inproving the conditions of children
in the countries where its progranmes were inpl ement ed

Ms. DURRANT (Janmi ca) asked how UNFPA in particul ar woul d assess
its record in regard to capacity building for national execution.

M. CHOMHURY (Bangl adesh) said that his own country's experience

was that the various agenci es which had operated i n Bangl adesh over the years
had performed well in their respective areas and had contributed significantly
to inproving the lives of the people. That experience should be borne in mnd
in the context of so-called consolidation.

Noting that a nunber of United Nations conferences had been held and
resol uti ons adopted on the probl ens of the |east devel oped countries (LDGCs),
he asked how far they had succeeded in coordinating and focusing attention on
those problens at both the field and Headquarters levels. He would also |ike
to know to what extent the various agencies cooperated with the regiona
economi ¢ conmi ssions. Lastly, it would be useful if the Council and the
General Assenbly could be nore fully informed regarding the work of the ACC

M. MARCH (Australia) said that the quality of the resident
coordi nator systemwas the greatest challenge facing the United Nations in the
field. Reformunder both Track One and Track Two was vital and he fully
supported the comments of the representative of Norway in that regard

On the question of resources, he supported the coments of the
representative of Chile regarding the inmage of the United Nations. Funds

shoul d be sought in order to do a few things well, which could then be used as



E/ 1997/ SR 7
page 18

| everage, rather than setting larger and | ess tangi bl e objectives. Donor
countries were | ooking for tangible outcones and for evidence of successful
resource utilization.

M. PEDERSEN (Chserver for Dennmark) said that the

Secretary-Ceneral 's decision on Track One was the nost inportant step of
recent years. The conclusion whether or not the United Nations was rel evant
as a devel opnment organi zati on woul d inevitably be based on an eval uati on of
its activities at the country level. The four el ements which woul d determ ne
whet her the United Nations could exert a positive influence were the resident
coordi nator system the UNDAF, the establishnment of common prem ses and
services and, |ast but not |east, the availability of well-qualified
prof essi onal staff.

It was generally agreed that the resident coordinator system nust be
strengt hened and nuch had been done already in that regard. The point at
i ssue was whet her the resident coordinator should be linked to the operationa
system H's own del egation believed that, w thout such a link, the so-called
“two hat” nodel, the resident coordinator would have no credibility. It was
hard to see why that should constitute a maj or problem

As far as programming wi thin the UNDAF was concerned, he suggested that
experience in India, as recently reported, constituted a desirable nodel. As
for the common prem ses and services, his del egati on supported the
cost-effective initiatives already taken by the Secretary-General. The
probl ens that had arisen in certain cases should not be allowed to hol d back
t he whol e exerci se.

Wth regard to staff, his del egation supported the steps already taken.
One elenent of the highly inportant process of staff-performance appraisa
shoul d be the staff menber's contribution to coordination, which should be
regarded as the responsibility of the entire country team

Whi | e sonme progress had already been nmade in the inplenentation of
Track One, there had been too much argunent as to why it should not take place
rather than on how it should be inplemented. Track Cne reformwas, however, a
first prerequisite for nmaking the United Nations systemnore rel evant. One of

the earliest consequences of failure in that regard m ght well be reduced



E/ 1997/ SR 7
page 19

contributions to sone or all of the agencies concerned. He |ooked forward to
the inplementation of the Secretary-Ceneral's Track Two reforns at the country
| evel .

M. LOZANO (Mexico) asked whether there had been any effort to
har noni ze the neasures taken to ensure coordination in the field with those at
the Headquarters |level. He also asked what were the chief [essons to be
| earned fromthe experience of coordination in the field.

M. KONISH (Japan) asked whether, in view of the inportance of
the functions of the resident coordinators, any consideration had been given
to the possibility of involving Menber States in their appointnent. As far as
the performance of the resident coordinator's duties was concerned, it was
advi sabl e, given the inportance of an integrated approach to devel oprment, that
he shoul d have a point of contact with Menber States, for exanple, in respect
of the presentation of a CSN. There should be full consultation during the
fornmulation of the CSN, not only with the Governnent concerned but also with
donor the countries and the Bretton Wods institutions.

M. SIMKHADA (Cobserver for Nepal) said that the essence of any

ref orm package was its ultinate inpact and not its structure. He asked the
adm ni strator of UNDP in particular how the current restructuring process

woul d help to strengthen the participatory approach to devel opnent rather than
the traditional top-down nodel that intergovernnmental organizations seened to
adopt at the country |evel.

The programme of national offices referred to by the Executive D rector
of WP was interesting and he woul d wel conme a broader picture of the way in
whi ch the process was developing. He would also like to know how t he
ri ghts-based approach to the needs of children, and of society as a whole, in
the devel oping world, referred to by the Executive Director of UN CEF, was
wor ki ng in actual practice.

M. MACHN (United Kingdomof Geat Britain and Northern Irel and)
said that the successful inplenmentation of Tracks One and Two of the reform
process was absolutely crucial to the ability of the United Nations to nove
ahead. He agreed with the representative of Australia that it was vital to
resol ve the current debate about the resident coordinator system Many issues

wer e invol ved, demandi ng careful consideration, but sonme agreenent nust be



E/ 1997/ SR 7
page 20

achieved in order to make it work. The notion of trying to delink
responsibility for the resident coordinator systemfromthe operational part
of devel oprment activities did not seema useful one.

M. PEDROSO (Quba) asked whether there had been any cal cul ation of
the amount of resources that could be reallocated as a result of the reform
process. The representative of Norway had said that the provision of
resources by menber countries woul d depend on reform achi eved through
integration. Integration and efficiency were not the same thing, however, and
the aimmust be to enhance and consolidate the delivery of assistance.

M. SPETH (Admnistrator, United Nations Devel opment Programre
(UNDP)) said that his agency was working very closely with the
Secretary-General on the proposals for Track Two. Wile the decision on how
to nove forward rested, of course, with the Secretary-GCGeneral hinself, all the
agenci es had had a chance to put their proposals to him A bold programe of
reformwoul d be needed and he wel coned in that connection the proposals put
forward by the Nordic countries and the nenbers of the European Union. He
understood al so that the Goup of 77 had recently had a successful neeting
with the Secretary-Ceneral.

Mich interest had been expressed in the resident coordinator system and
maki ng it work better. Basically, there were two ways of doing so. |If the
position of resident coordinator became a full-time job, it would have to be
linked to the operational systemand given real authority and real resources.
Al ternatively, the “two hat” nodel could be retained. The conflict that m ght
ari se under the two-hat system had been exaggerated and could be dealt with
There was al ready, he thought, far nore conplenmentarity than conflict, but
that was for the Secretary-Ceneral to decide

There was cooperation with the regi onal econom c conm ssions at the
country level in UNDP programm ng and the conm ssions sonetinmes served as
executing agenci es. That cooperation should be strengthened and conti nued.

He agreed that greater transparency and better commruni cation was
required in respect of ACC. Its deliberations, of course, concerned
Headquarters rather than country-level cooperation, but the results should be
nmade avail able to Menber States. There was also the Joint Consultative G oup

on Policy which worked to harnonize policy at the country |evel



E/ 1997/ SR 7
page 21

On the question of the selection of resident coordinators, he said that
hi s agency had al ready devel oped a country profile, in consultation with the
country concerned, describing the types of qualification needed. Governnents
coul d, of course, reject candidates and in some cases had done so. The
process was in place and was worki ng reasonably wel | .

On the question of participation, he agreed that the restructuring
process nust pronote a nore participatory approach. A powerful dial ogue was
needed with governments and with civil society and nothing proposed in the
reforns woul d do anyt hing but strengthen such a di al ogue.

Ms. SADIK (Executive Director, United Nations Popul ation
Fund(UNFPA)) said that the penalty that she had referred to in connection with
capacity-building was that, in some cases, a mobdel of national execution had
been agreed upon where the capacity did not exist, and the burden had then
fallen entirely on the snmall UNFPA national office. Her agency was currently
studying a systemof guidance to the field in assessing capacity and of
hel ping to build capacity where it did not exist.

In general, there had been a substantial increase in national education,
but nore needed to be done in terns of assistance - in training content, for
exanpl e, and of auditing requirenments - which she hoped woul d be taken up by
the systemas a whol e.

She agreed that the Indian nodel was an excellent one. The Resident
Coordi nator there was to be congratul ated on the way i n which he had set
hi nsel f apart fromany one organi zati on and taken an overall view of his role.
He was, of course, an exceptional person but it should be possible to learn
fromhi s experience and see how a nodel coul d be devel oped.

She agreed that the resident coordi nator systemnust be linked to
operational activities and an institutional approach worked out that woul d not
rely on personality. The contribution of staff menbers to the work of the
team should formpart of any performance evaluation. It was generally
accepted that the resident coordinator system nmust be made to work, but there
was not as yet any coll egial agreenent on how that should be done. The
Secretary-General woul d nmake his decision in the near future. The
resul ts-oriented approach al ready adopted by her organi zati on was a neasure

bot h of achi evenments and of persisting constraints.



E/ 1997/ SR 7
page 22

Ms. BERTIN  (Executive Director, Wrld Food Programre (WP))
regretted that the inpression mght have been given that the agencies were
argui ng anong thensel ves about Track One. They were all involved in
implementing it and nmany positive results had been achi eved. Progress had
al ready been nmade on common prem ses and services, although sonme probl ens
renai ned.

On the resident coordinator issue, she enphasized that all the agencies
were commtted to strengthening the system There were differences of views:
sone agencies wanted to keep the “two-hat” systemrather than have a separate
and i ndependent resident coordinator. The inportant point was that the person
wearing the two hats should be able to distinguish between them The
di stinction had been blurred in the past and one solution to the probl emwoul d
be to make the position separate and i ndependent.

Wth regard to staff, she pointed out that her agency had al ready
converted a nunber of international posts to national ones and that, inits
new regi onal offices, specific jobs had been designated for filling by
national rather than international staff menbers

On the question of the UNDAF, she said that it did actually add value to
the process and that fairly rapid progress had been nmade, with all agencies
participating. As for timng, UNDAF canme after the CSN and the Country
Programe Assessment but before the agencies worked out their own programmes.

As far as the neasurenent of achievenment was concerned, WP woul d
need to focus nore on the devel opnent side and the new eval uati on system
woul d seek to do precisely that. On the energency side, the agency had
already learned that it was necessary to decide ahead of tinme, through the
conti ngency- pl anni ng process, how the success of a programme was to be defined
and when it should be regarded as conpl et ed.

O the question as to whether resources were sufficient, she said that
of course they were not. However, no matter how great its resources, WP
woul d never be able to solve the probl emof world hunger alone and all nust
work together to nake a difference

Ms. BELLAMY (Executive Director, United Nations Children' s Fund
(UNICEF)) said that the resident coordinator systemhad al ready been a najor
topic in the agencies' group discussions and all of themattached hi gh

priority toit. It was fully recognized that both tracks of the reform



E/ 1997/ SR 7
page 23

process nust be put into effect and that the credibility not just of the
United Nations itself but of the entire systemwas at stake. At the same
time, care nust be taken to ensure that at |east those portions of the process
relating to devel opnent and human rights were genuinely visionary and bol d.
Di scussi ons regardi ng common prem ses and services were al ready proceedi ng
rapidly, with criteria already adopted and a tinetable set up.
On the question of qualified staff, she agreed that performance
eval uation was crucial. Future reformwould need to focus generally on
i nprovi ng the nmanagenent of hunman resources. On the | essons |earned through
measuri ng out comes, she said that UNICEF had al ready been successful in
setting quantitative neasurenments. Like all the agencies, it faced a greater
challenge in inproving qualitative eval uation
Sone of the reforns had al ready had a neasurabl e inpact: for exanple

four agencies would shortly be presenting their budgets in a harnoni zed
format. The UN CEF perspective whereby progranmm ng was based on rights rather
than needs helped to build a certain sustainability into the process. That
approach was just beginning to be followed in the field.

M. DESAI (Under-Secretary-Ceneral in charge of the Econom c and
Soci al Departments) said that the adm nistrative savings that would result
fromthe anal ganation of the Departnment for Policy Coordinati on and
Sust ai nabl e Devel opnent, the Department for Social Information and Policy
Anal ysis and the Departnent of Devel opnent Support and Managenent Services had
not yet been worked out but woul d be seen when the revised estimates were
presented. He stressed that the adm nistrative savings to be redepl oyed for
devel opnent woul d not sinply be those resulting fromthe nerger but all those
that would arise fromthe reformand restructuring process. Mre specific
proposal s woul d be made at a future stage in that connection. He thanked his
col l eagues fromthe agencies for their replies to questions and, while not
hiding their areas of disagreenent, for highlighting in the large areas in

whi ch they were working together in harnony.

The neeting rose at 6.10 p.m




